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Lewistown Public Schools
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2015

The Business Manager of the Lewistown Public Schools has provided this MD&A to give th.e
reader of these statements an overview of the financial position and activities of the school dis-
trict for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Using This Financial Report '
The general format of the report is required by Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Stand-
ards Board (GASB). Thus is born the GASB 34 requirement.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

The report includes two district-wide statements that focus on operations of the district as a whole. These
statements measure operations using an economic resources measurement focus, and use the accrual basis
accounting. Activities that are fiduciary in nature are not included in these statements.

A. The Statement of Net Position shows “assets” (what is owned), “liabilities” (what is owed),
and the “net position” (the resources that would remain if all obligations were settled) of the
school district. Some assets are restricted for certain purposes or reserved for emergencies
and cash flow purposes. Some assets are invested in “fixed” or “capital” assets, such as
buildings, equipment and other long-lived property; and some assets are available to fund
budgets of the following year.

B. The Statement of Activities shows the amounts of program-specific and general school dis-

- trict revenue used to support the school district’s various functions.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the activities of the school district
into three categories:

Governmental activities — The school functions including instruction, student services, ad-
ministration, etc. Property taxes, state and federal revenues usually support most of these
functions of the district.

Proprietary (business-type) activities — school operations included in this category include
IMC, Central Supply Store, and Central Transportation.

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
The fund statements provide detailed information about the funds used by the school district.

State law and Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) established the fund struc-
ture of school districts. State law generally requires school districts to segregate money gen-
erated for certain purposes, like transportation and debt service, in separate fund accounts.

The fund statements report balances and activities of the most significant or “major” funds
separately and combine the activities of less significant funds under a single category. Signif-
icance of funds is determined based on the proportional size of the funds, the relative im-
portance of the activities of the funds to the school district’s operations, and the existence of
legal budget requirements. Internal Service funds are never reported as major funds, but are
combined and presented in a separate set of financial statements.




The Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
are shown for governmental funds such as the general funds, special revenue funds for trans-
portation and school food service, and debt service and capital outlay funds. These fung use
the modified accrual basis of accounting and represent the majority of the district’s activities
and programs.

Fund statements include a reconciliation of the governmental fund statements to the district-
wide statements. Most significant differences result from the use of different presentation ba-
sis. The district-wide statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and the
fund statements for governmental funds use the modified accrual basis. In addition, general
capital assets and general long-term debt are reported in the district-wide statements but not
in the fund statements.

Reporting the District’s Trust and Fiduciary Responsibilities . '
The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for endowments (including Eveline Eccles and Alweis
Scholarships) and the student extracurricular fund.

This report includes the activities in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position anfl
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position because the district cannot use these assets to fund its op-
eration.

The District is responsible for ensuring these assets are used for their intended purpose.

Budget—to-Actual Comparisons

As previous audits have shown, the district had not been reconciling its records with the in-
formation provided by the County Treasurer. Those records were reconciled in FY2008, and
in the course of that process, several errors were found. Those errors necessitated prior peri-
od revenue and expenditure adjustments. The district amended its budgets where possible to
make the best use of these adjustments.

Outside of these adjustments, there were no significant variances from our initial revenue and
expenditure estimates.

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Position serves over time as a useful indicator of a school district’s financial position. In the Lewis-
town Public Schools, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,826,557 as of June 30, 2015. This number is dras-
tically lower than in years past due to the addition of the Net Pension liability required to be reported on
the School District’s books. The amount of this new liability from TRS and PERS is $8,449,220. For
comparison sake, if this liability were not required to be reported, approximately 45% of the district’s net
position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, land improvements, buildings and improve-
ments, and machinery and equipment), which is the same percentage as FY2014.




Lewistown Public Schools
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities FY 2015

Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total Assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total Liabilities

Invested in capital assets,
Net of debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

6,597,790
8.236.458
14,834,248

240,616
12,249,324
12,489,940

4,583,772
6,678,111

(9.435.326)
1,826,557

Lewistown Public Schools
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities FY 2015

GENERAL REVENUES

District Levy

State Equalization

Other State Revenue
County

Federal

Investment Earning
Gain on Asset

Other

Total General Revenue

GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

Instruction (includes OPEB)
Support

Media

Administration

O&M

Transportation
Extracurricular

School Food

Other Current Charges
Interest and Other Charges
Depreciation — unallocated
Total Operations

3,363,576
3,338,041
2,624,983
1,017,033
0

57,399
9,098
138.024
$10,548,154

7,098,477
544,427
497,178

1,919,555

1,658,863
807,326
218,993
696,213

32,042

550

14,240
$13,550,864




Capital Assets )
As of June 30, 2015, the District had invested over $6 million in capital assets including land and land

improvements, buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment. General fixed assets are re-
ported at historical cost. Historical cost was established at the initial booking of fixed assets by determin-
ing actual costs or estimating using standard costing procedure. The District’s fixed asset policy is set to
include items of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. The following schedule presents capital
balances with accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2015.

Land and Improvements 1,801,513
Accumulated Depreciation (__830,245)

971,268

Buildings and Improvements 11,309,206
Construction in Progress 32,468
Accumulated Depreciation (6,454.625)
4,887,049

Machinery and Equipment 3,363,120
Accumulated Depreciation (2,550.414)

812,706

The District’s Future ‘

State law enables districts to use three-year average enroliment when calculating budgets, which has
helped the District in the past. Over the past few years, enrollment seems to have leveled off. However,
there is growing need for services for special students and that population continues to grow. The current
Lewistown Collective Bargaining Agreement extends though FY 16, and included a 1% (FY15) and 2%
(FY16) raise for all employees. We had several retirements in both 2014 and 2015, causing the de-
mographics of the District to change slightly. Future retirements may still have an effect on the budgets
and the dynamics of the District.

The district also faces other challenges and decisions including:

¢ The Lewistown Board of Trustees requested an Elementary General Fund Levy as well as levies
in both the Elementary and High School Building Reserve Funds. While the Elementary General
Fund levy narrowly passed, both of the Building Reserve Levies failed. Due to failed attempts in
the past the Board is very conscientious in what they ask of taxpayers. Given the community’s
reluctance to approve higher taxes, the Board must weigh the merits of pursuing future levy re-
quests.

* The District estimates that general building repairs and maintenance in excess of $10 million will
be necessary over the next several years. The current Building Reserve Levies expired at the end
of FY2015 and, as mentioned above, the both Levies failed in 2015. The Board will need to de-
termine if another Building Reserve Levy request will be presented to voters in the near future.

® The ever-increasing use of technology in the classrooms has put a financial dilemma upon the
District. Currently, both the Elementary and High School have permanent levies in place. The
Elementary yearly levy is $61,498 and the High School’s is $54,165, not enough to keep all tech-
nology within the District up-to-date. Due to changes in state law, if additional funds are request-
ed of voters, the levy may not exceed 10 years. The Board will need to determine if non-
permanent Technology Levy request will need to be presented to voters future.




* The Trustees and teacher’s unjon will begin the negotiation process in December for FY2017 and
FY2018. The two groups must agree to terms that are fiscally responsible, but promote the re-
cruitment and retention of quality instructional staff.

In the end, all of the District’s finances boil down to how effectively we are educating our children.
There are many ways to measure our progress, and none of them are perfect. Nonetheless, our District
continues to struggle to meet adequate yearly progress as required by the federal government. As a result,

we must continue to keep our focus on our students’ education and allocate our resources in the manner
that best serves them.

Contact for Additional Information
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Business Manager at
the Lewistown Public Schools, 215 7% Avenue South, Lewistown, MT 59457, (406)-535-8777 x116.
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STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 1980
Billings, Montana 59103

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County

Lewistown, Montana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lewistown School District No. 1 as of and for the year ended June 30,
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial state-
ments as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP); this includes the design, implementation, and mainte-
nance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with GAAP and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comp-
troller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control rele-
vant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinjons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of

Lewistown School District No. 1 as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with GAAP.




Other Matters

Regquired Supplementary Information (RSI)

GAAP requires that the management’s discussion and analysis (pages 3 - 7), and the schedule of fl{ndi_r{g for other post-
employment benefits other than pensions (page 39), and schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability (page 40), and
Schedule of Contributions to Montana Retirement Systems (page 41), and budgetary comparison information (p.ages 43 - 46) pe
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic ﬁfxanmal st_atements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of ﬁnan_mal repc?xtlr}g for plac-
ing basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited pro-
cedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAP, which consisted of inquires of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s' responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statfaments We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Lewistown
School District No. 1°s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of revenues, expenses and balances Qf student
activity funds (pages 47) and schedule of reported enrollment (pages 48) are presented for purposes of additional analysm and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (pages 49 - 50) is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedule of revenues, expenses and balances of student activity funds, schedule of reported enroliment, and
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including com-
paring and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic finan-
cial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAP. In our
opinion, the accompanying schedule of revenues, expenses and balances of student activity funds, schedule of reported enroll-
ment, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 2015 on our consideration
of Lewistown School District No. 1 internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provi-
sions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Lewistown School District No. 1 internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Billings, Montana
October 26, 2015
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Lewistown School District No. |
Fergus County ’
Lewistown, Montana 59457

|
|

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015
o Govemmental
| Activities
5 j ASSETS:
Current assets:
. Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,346,537
<1 Taxes receivable 115,232
! Due from other governments . 87,775
’ Inventories 44,083
Prepaid expenses 1,663
| Deposits 2,500
" Total current assets 6,597,790
|
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,565,436
4. Capital assets:
Land 590,530
Construction in progress 32,467
Net depreciable assets 6,048 025
Tota! noncurrent assets 8,236,458
Total assets 14,834,248
3 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Employer pension plan activities 975,437
Total deferred outflows of resources 975,437
] Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 15,809,685
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Unearned revenue 12,519
Current portions long-term obligations 62,000
Current portions compensated absences 228,097
- Total current liabilities 302,616
- Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term obligations 9,643,881
Compensated absences 456,193
Long-term capital obligations 2,087,250
” Total noncurrent liabilities 12,187,324
Total liabilities 12,489,940
) DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
F Unavailable employer pension plan 1,493,188
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,493,188
. NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 4,583,772
Restricted 6,678,111
Unrestricted (Deficit) (9,435,326)
Total Net Position 1,826,557
i Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 3 15,809,685
- The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
10
)
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Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2015

IO

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Program Revenues Changes in Net
Position
Primary Government )
Operating Capital
Charge for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
Instructional services $ 7,098477 $ 63591 $ 1,611,236 § - $ (5,423,650)
Support services 544,427 37,700 48 - (506,679)
Educational media services 497,178 - 57,057 - (440,121)
General administrative services 1,919,555 32,766 54,155 - (1,832,634)
Operation & maintenance services 1,658,863 33,466 10,965 - (1,614,432)
Transportation services 807,326 19,417 207,083 - (580,826)
School food services 696,213 264,672 241,078 - (190,463)
Extracurricular 281,993 - - 37,930 (244,063)
Other current charges 32,042 6,068 - - (25,974)
Debt service: -
Interest and other charges 550 - - - (550)
Unatlocated depreciation expense * 14,240 - - - (14,240)
Total Governmental Activities 13,550,864 457,680 2,181,622 37,930 (10,873,632) -y
GENERAL REVENUES
District levies 3,363,576
State Equalization 3,338,041 .
Other State Revenues 2,624,983 |
County 1,017,033
Interest 57,399 -
Other 138,024
Gain loss on Sale of Assets 9,098 B
Total General Revenues 10,548,154
Change in Net Position (325,478)
Net Position
Beginning of the Year 10,653,417
Prior Period Adjustments (8,501,382)
End of the Year $ 1,826,557 1

* Excludes depreciation included in direct expenses of the various functions

fﬂ«:@z«}i

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No, 1
- Fergus County
: i Lewistown, Montana 59457
BALANCE SHEET
1 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Z June 30, 2015
N ' MAJOR
n Other Total
o General Debt Service Building Governmental Governmental
(Elem.) Reserve (HS) Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1377515 § 97,079 $§ 1,000,667 $ 3,854,329 $ 6,329,590
Taxes receivable 84,756 4,023 3,220 23,233 115,232
Due from other governments - - - 87,775 87,775
Inventories - - - 44,083 44,083
Prepaid expenses 750 - - 913 1,663
Deposits. - - - 2,500 2,500
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 1,565,436 - - 1,565,436
Total assets 1,463,021 1,666,538 1,003,887 4,012,833 8,146,279
l DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
3 Total deferred outflows of resources - - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,463,021 1,666,538 1,003,887 4,012,833 8,146,279
LIABILITIES:
Unearned revenue - - - 12,519 12,519
Total liabilities - - - 12,519 12,519
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES:
Unavailable property taxes receivable 84,756 4,023 3,220 23,233 115,232
Total deferred inflows of resources 84,756 4,023 3,220 23,233 115,232
FUND BALANCE (DEFICITS):
= Nonspendable 750 - - 44,996 45,746
Restricted - 1,662,515 1,000,667 3,938,707 6,601,889
- Unassigned 1,377,515 - - (6,622) 1,370,893
Total fund balance 1,378,265 1,662,515 1,000,667 3,977,081 8,018,528
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balance $ 1463021 $ 1666538 $ 1003887 §$ 4,012,833 § 8,146,279
RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
- Total fund balance reported above $ 8,018,528
Internal Service Fund Net Position 16,947
- Governmental Capital Assets 6,671,022
Employer pension plan activities 975,437
Long-term Liabilities
- Long-Term Obligations (9,705,881)
3 Compensated Absences (684,290)
Long-Term Capital Obligations (2,087,250)
o Unavailable employer pension plan (1,493,188)
Unavailable property taxes receivable 115,232
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,826,557
] The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
12
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Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

Revenues:
District levies
Interest
Charges for services
Other
County
State
Federal

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instructional services
Support services
Educational media services

General administrative services
Operation & maintenance services

Transportation services

School food services

Extracurricular

Other current charges
Debt service:

Interest and other charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over expenditures

Other financing sources/uses:
Sale of capital assets

Fund transfers in

Fund transfers (out)

Total other financial sources/uses

Net changes in fund balances

Fund balance:
Beginning of the year
Prior period adjustments
End of the year

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2015

MAJOR
. e Other Total
General Debg]Serwce R Buxldm}g} S Governmental Governmental
(Elem.) eserve (HS) Funds Funds

$ 2603185 § 122,035 § 98,337 689,756 $ 3,513,313
14,439 9,322 6,504 27,134 57,399

- - - 465,930 465,930

2,528 - - 135,496 138,024

- - - 1,110,915 1,110,915
6,386,857 92,013 - 507,838 6,986,708

- - - 742,991 742,991
9,007,009 223,370 104,841 3,680,060 13,015,280
5,132,437 - - 1,556,898 6,689,335

247,948 - - 292,613 540,561
309,609 - - 178,215 487,824
1,385,683 - - 499,610 1,885,293
1,198,658 - - 147,644 1,346,302
35915 - - 600,029 635,944
137,883 - - 551,641 689,524
242,848 - - 31,202 274,050

- - - 32,042 32,042

- 550 - - 550

17,804 - - 349,168 366,972
8,708,785 550 - 4,239,062 12,948,397
298,224 222,820 104,841 (559,002) 66,883

R R - 1,605 1,605

- - - 393,859 393,859
(263,859) - - (130,000) (393,859)
(263,859) - - 265,464 1,605
34,365 222,820 104,841 (293,538) 68,488
1,343,900 1,439,695 895,826 4,281,465 7,960,886
- - - (10,846) (10,846)

$ 1378265 § 1 662,515 $ 1,000,667 3,977,081 $ 8,018,528

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Net Changes in Fund Balance $ 68,488
Change in net position from internal service funds 2,265

Revenues on the Statement of Activities not included in governmental funds

statement:
Increase (decrease) in taxes receivable (149,737)
State Pension Aid 312,815

Revenues reported in the governmental funds statement not included in the
Statement of Activities

Sale of Fixed Assets (1,605)
Expenses on the Statement of Activities not included in the governmental funds
statement:
Depreciation Expense (528,799)
Accuarial Pension Expense (198,696)
Capital asset donation 37,930
Retirement incentive (10,849)
(Increase) decrease in Other Post Employment Benefits (179,370) )
(Increase) decrease in compensated absence liability (53.990) (933,774)

Expenditures reported in the governmental funds statement not included in the
Statement of Activities

Capital outlays 366,972
Jain loss on saie ot assets 9,098 376,070

Change in net position reported on the Statement of Activities . 325,478

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No. 1 )
Fergus County ;
Lewistown, Montana 59457 }

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS |
June 30, 2015 1 }

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service
ASSETS: g
Current assets: ? :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,947
Total assets ) 16,947
LIABILITIES:
Total liabilities -
NET POSITION:
Unrestricted (Deficit) 16,947
Total Net Position 16,947
Total liabilities, and net position 3 16,947

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased services

Total Operating Expense
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NET POSITION:

Beginning of the Year
End of the Year

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

Govemnmental
Activities - Internal
Service

3 131,674
131,674

129,409
129,409
2,265

14,682
$ 16,947
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Lewistown School District No. 1

Fergus County

Lewistown, Montana 59457

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Governmental
A!;“M. iﬁs -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from Customers $ 131,674
Payments to Benefits (129,409)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 2,265
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash
Equivalents 2,265
BALANCE:
Beginning of the Year : 14,682
End of the Year $ 16,947
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 2,265
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities g 2,265

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2015

~ ' Private Purpose

Trust Funds Agency Funds
ASSETS:
Current assets:
[ Cash and cash equivalents $ 320,018 § 708,446
Accounts receivable - net 11,755 -
Total Assets 331,773 708,446
] LIABILITIES:
| Current liabilities:
’ Warrants payable - 708,446
Total Liabilities - 708,446
NET POSITION:
Held in trust for endowment 110,549
Held in trust for student activities 221,224
Total Net Position $ 331,773
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2015
L
Private Purpose
Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Revenues from student activities 3 407,690
Total Additions 407,690
‘ DEDUCTIONS:
Expenses of student activities 386,862
Total Deductions : 386,862
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 20,828
NET POSITION:
Beginning of the year 310,945
End of the year 3 331,773

— The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

l.a REPORTING ENTITY )
The basic financial statements of Lewistown School District No. 1 (School District) have been prepared on a prescribed basis of
accounting that demonstrates compliance with the accounting and budget laws of the State of Montana, which conforms to gen-
erally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The School District applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) pronouncements.

During fiscal year 2015 the School District adopted the following: :

e  GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ~ an amendment of GASB Statement No.
27. This statement revises and establishes new financial reporting requirement that provide employees with pension ben-
efits. The statement is effective for fiscal year 2015. This statement will require the School District to expand its pension
foot note disclosures.

e  GASB Statement No. 69 — Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations. The statement is appli-
cable for fiscal year 2015. The statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government
combinations and disposals of government operations. The School District is not merging with another School District or
ceasing to exist. This statement has no effect on the financial statements.

e GASB Statement No. 71 — Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amend-
ment of GASB Statement No. 68. This statement amends paragraph 137 of statement 68 to require that, at transition, a
government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to
the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability.

e GASB Statement No. 76 — The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.
This statement changes the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) The statement is applicable for
fiscal year 2016, however the School District implemented this statement in fiscal year 2015.

The following are a listing of GASB statements which have been issued and the Schoot District assessment of effects to the fi-
nancial statements.

e GASB Statement No. 72 — Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement addresses accounting and financial
reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
School District has not early implemented, but anticipates this to be only a terminology change in the notes to the finan-
cial statements.

o GASB Statement No. 73 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This statement
provides guidance on non-employer entity pension plans. This statement appears to be applicable to the State of Montana
and may have no effect on the School District. The School District is reviewing this statement further to ensure proper
reporting in fiscal year 2016, if applicable. :

»  GASB Statement No. 74 — Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans. This State-
ment replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as
amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. It also includes
requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement No.
25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, as
amended, Statement 43, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures. The statement establishes new accounting and fi-
nancial reporting requirements for governments whose employees are provided with OPEB, as well as for certain non-
employer governments that have a legal obligation to provide financial support for OPEB provided to the employees of
other entities. This statement is effective for FY 2017 and the School District has determined it will have no effect on its
financial reporting.

s  GASB Statement No. 75 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. This statement is effective for fiscal year 2017 and the School District antic-
ipates this statement to have no effect. This statement is effective for FY 2017. The School District plans to implement
when they update their OPEB numbers at the next evaluation date or by FY 2018, whichever, comes first.

The School District consists of two legally separate entities, an elementary district which provides education for kindergarten
through eighth grade and a high school district which provides education for ninth through twelfth grade. For financial reporting
purposes the two school districts are combined because they are controlled by the same central board of trustees and managed by
the same administration. The board of trustees is elected by the public and it has the authority to make decisions, appoint admin-
istrators and managers, and significantly influence operations. GAAP requires only one general fund for each reporting entity so
the elementary and high school general funds are combined in the accompanying financial statements.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

The Lewistown School District No. 1 was incorporated under the laws of the State of Montana and as required by GAAP, the
financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the Lewistown School District No. 1 (the primary government)' an.d
any component units. The-criteria for including organizations as component units within the School District's reporting entity is
set forth in Section 2100 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) "Codification of Government Agcountmg
and Financial Reporting Standards.” The basic criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body,
as well as the School District's ability to impose its will on that organization, or the potential for the organization to prov1d§ spe-
cific financial benefit to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the School District. Based on those criteria the School District
has no component units.

I.b. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING

I.b. 1. GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. The governmen-
tal activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and intemal service funds, (primary government). Separate fi-
nancial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are exclud-
ed from the government-wide financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements report using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of ac-
counting generally including the elimination of internal activity between or within funds. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recog-
nized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.

Transters between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as trans-
fers in the governmental activities column.

The statement of activities reports the direct expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the .
functional program. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function. Program revenues include:
*  Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function.
*  Operating and Capital grants that are restricted to a particular functional.

Property taxes, investment earnings, state equalization payments, and other revenue sources not properly included with program
revenue are reported as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function is self-supporting or drawing from general revenues.

1.b.2.  FUND ACCOUNTING

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate state-
ments for each fund category ~ governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial state-
ments is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. The student activity fund and endowment fund are displayed as fiduciary funds. Since the resources in the fiduciary
funds cannot be used for School District operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities, and fund balance are included
on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present net increases and decreases in current assets. Revenues are
recorded when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period, anything collected
after June 30 is generally not material. Unavailable income is recorded in governmental funds for delinquent taxes. Expendi-
tures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt and com-
pensated absence payments which are recognized when due. Capital assets are functional expenditures in governmental funds,
and proceeds from long-term debt or capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenue and revenues received from the State of
Montana are recognized when susceptible to accrual. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are
measurable and available. Cost reimbursement grant funds are considered to be both measurable and available to the extent of
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received and the expenditure has not
been incurred they are recorded as unearned grant revenues because the revenues are available. All other revenue items are con-
sidered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Proprietary, trust, and agency fund financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and are reported using the

accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses gen-
erally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongo-
ing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for internal
service funds include the payment of benefits. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the general fund be reported as a major fund and that only one general fund be reported so the
elementary and high school general funds have been combined as one major fund. Other individual governmental funds should
be reported in separate columns as major funds based on these criteria:

*  Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures of that individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of the corre-
sponding total (assets, labilities, and so forth) for all funds of that category or type (that is, total governmental funds).

In addition to funds that meet the major fund criteria, any other governmental fund that government officials believe is particular-
ly important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

The School District reports the following major governmental funds:

*  General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School District and accounts for all revenues and
expenditures of the School District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts that
are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating

funds and the flexibility funds since the restrictions on those funds are similar to the general fund.

*  Elementary Debt Service Fund — This fund is used to account for the financing needs of the School District to pay interest
and principal on outstanding bonds and special improvement School District (SID) assessments.

*  High School Building Reserve Fund — This fund is used to account for financing voter approved building or construction
projects funded with School District mill levies. This includes raising money for the future construction, equippi_ng, or
enlarging of school buildings and for the purpose of purchasing land needed for school purposes in the School District.

1.b.3. OTHER FUND TYPES

Internal Service Funds — Accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the
School District, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The fund includes a self-insurance dental and vision
insurance fund. Because all of the services predominately benefit governmental rather than business type functions, they are in-
cluded with governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds — Accounts for the receipt and disbursement of monies from student activity organizations, as well
as any donated scholarship funds. These organizations exist with the explicit approval of and are subject to revocation by the

School District's Board of Trustees.. This accounting reflects the School District's trust relationship with the student activity or-
ganizations and any scholarship commitments.

l.c ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION (FUND BALANCE)
l.e.1  CASH AND INVESTMENTS
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, as well as short-term investments as authorized by State statutes. ) MonFana Code
Annotated (MCA) allows Montana local governments to invest public money not necessary for immediate use in Um.ted States
government treasury bills, notes; bonds; certain United States treasury obligations; United States government s;:cur'lty money
market fund if investments consist of those listed above; time or savings deposits with a bank or credit union which is FDIC or
NCUA insured; or in repurchase agreements as authorized by MCA, or Montana Board of Investments Short Term Investmqnt
Pool (STIP). Interest earned on the pooled investments is distributed to each contributing entity and fund on a pro rata basis.
Investments are recorded at fair market value,

Information regarding the collateral and security for cash is not available to the School District. However, S_tatc statute requires
that United State government securities or agencies be held as collateral to secure deposits of public funds in excess of Federz'il
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. The external investment pool is audited as part of Fergus County Coynt_y s
financial statements. This investment pool is not registered with or monitored by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC).

For purposes of the Statement of Cash flows, the School District considers all highly liquid investments with a rpaturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Restricted cash accounts of the Elementary Debt Service Fund are re-
stricted for specific use as required by the QZAB bond indenture agreement.

I.c.2. TAXES

Property tax levies are set connection with the budget process, and are based on taxable values listed as of January 1 for all prop-
erty located in the School District. Taxable values are established by the Montana Department of Revenue based on market val-
ues. A revaluation of all property is required to be completed on a periodic basis. Taxable value is defined by State statute as a
fixed percentage of market value.

Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer who credits to the School District funds their respective share of the collec-
tions. The tax levies are collectible in two installments, which become delinquent after November 30 and May 31. Property
taxes are liens upon the property being taxed. After a period of three years, the County may begin foreclosure proceedings and
sell the property at auction. The School District receives its share of the sale proceeds of any such auction.

Taxes that become delinquent are charged interest at the rate of 5/6 of 1% per month plus a penalty of 2%. After a period of three
years, the County may begin foreclosure proceedings and sell real property at auction. In the case of personal property, the prop-
erty may be seized and sold after the taxes become delinquent,

I.¢.3. INVENTORIES
Materials, food inventory and supplies are carried in an inventory account at average cost and are subsequently charged to ex-
penditures when consumed.

l.c.4. CAPITAL ASSETS

The School District’s property, plant and equipment, with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost and
comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. Historical cost was established at the initial booking of
the capital assets by determining actual costs or estimating using standard costing procedures. The School District considers
capital assets to be items in excess of $5,000 with a useful life in excess of one year. The costs of normal maintenance and repair
are not capitalized. Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Depreciation on the other capital assets is provided
over their estimated useful lives on the straight-line method. The useful lives of these assets have been estimated as follows:

Capital Asset Classes Lives

Buildings 7 - 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Machinery and Equipment 5 —25 years

l.c.5. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/ INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a Separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This sepa-
rate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This sepa-

rate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Bond Refunding — Deferred outflow

The School District reports a deferred outflow for the deferred charge on refunding reported in the govemmcnt-wide_statement. qf
net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refupdcd debt and its reacquisi-
tion price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

Pension Liability— Deferred outflow/inflow .

The School District recognizes a net pension liability for each qualified pension plan in which it participates. Changes in the net
pension liability during the fiscal year are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inflows of resources, or deferred outflows
of resources depending on the nature of the change, in the period incurred. Those changes in net pension liability tha}t are record-
ed as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assgmptxoqs or .other
inputs and differences between expected or actual experience, are amortized over the weighted average remgim.ng service life qf
all participants in the respective qualified pension plan and recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the peri-
od in which they are incurred. Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component of pen-
sion expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of resources or de-
ferred outflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense.

Property Taxes — Deferred outflow

The School District reports deferred inflows under the modified accrual basis of accounting in the governmental funds for proper-
ty taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the amounts
become available. In the governmental fund balance sheet they are reported as unavailable from property taxes.

I.c.6. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE

Classified School District employees accumulate vacation and sick leave for later use or for payment upon termination, death, or
retirement. Classified School District employees earn vacation leave at the rate of 15 days per year during the first 10 years of
employment, and at increasing rates thereafter to 2 maximum of 24 days per year after 20 years of employment. There is no re-
quirement that vacation leave be taken, but the maximum permissible accumulation is the amount earned in the most recent two-
year period. At termination, employees are paid for any accumulated vacation leave at the current rate of pay. Classified School
District employees earn sick leave at the rate of one day per month. There is no limit on the accumulation of unused sick leave.
However, upon termination, only 25% of accumulated sick leave is paid at the current rate of pay, however, a classified employee
with 8 or more consecutive years of service in the District will be paid a lump sum payment equal to thirty percent (30%) of ac-
cumulated sick leave..

Certified School District employees shall accrue 10 days of discretionary days at the beginning of each year. Unused discretion-

ary days shall be allowed to accumulate to one hundred sixty ( 160) days per employee as sick days in their sick leave bank. When

the teacher has reached the one hundred sixty (160) days as sick days in their bank, he or she will be credited with ten discretion-

ary days for the year, but at the end of the year the certified employee will only carry a balance of one hundred sixty (160) to the

next year. After eight (8) consecutive years in the School District, certified employees who terminate employment shall be paid a
~lump sum payment equal to thirty percent (30%) day's salary for each day of accumulated sick leave.

Payment shall be based on the salary at time of termination of employment.

Liabilities incurred because of unused vacation and sick leave accumulated by employees are reflected in the financial state-
ments. Expenditures for unused leave are recorded when paid in governmental funds and when accrued on the statement of ac-
tivities. The amount expected to be paid within one year is $228,097 and it is generally paid out of the general fund.

l.c.7.  NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE

Statement of Net Position include the following:

*  Net Investment in Capital Assets ~ The component of net position that reports the difference between capital assets less
both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of debt that is directly attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction, or improvement of these capital assets.

*  Restricted — The component of net position that is either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt cove-
nants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional pro-
visions or enabling legislation. :

¢ Unrestricted ~ The difference between the assets and liabilities that is not reported in the other element of net position.

Governmental fund financial statements include the following fund balances:

*  Non-spendable — Includes amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable form or because of legal or
contractual constraints.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

»  Restricted — Includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by the constitution, external re-
source providers, or through enabling legislation.

‘e Unassigned — Amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are reported only in the general fund or funds
that have negative fund balances.

As of June 30, 2015, fund balance components other than unassigned fund balance consist of the following:

Purpose Non-spendable Restricted
Instructional - Regular $ 1,663 § 516,672
Operations and Maintenance - 17,613
Student Transportation - 915,777
School Food 44,083 -
Third Party Grantor Restrictions - 727,889
Employer Retirement Benefits - 298,954
Future Technology . - 179,387
Future Capital Costs - 2,283,082
Debt Service - 1,662.515
Total $ 45746 $ 6601889

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available, the School
District considers restricted funds to have been spent first.

1.d OTHER
I.d.1. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

1.d.2. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES

The School District is provided various financial services by Fergus County. The County also serves as cashier and treasurer for
the School District for tax and assessment collections and other revenues received by the County which are subject to distribution
to the various taxing jurisdictions located in the County. The collections made by the County on behalf of the School District are
accounted for in an agency fund in the School District’s name. No service charges have been recorded by the School District or
the Fergus County. i

NOTE2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2015, the summary of cash, cash equivalents for governmental and fiduciary funds is as follows:

Governmental Fiduciary
Account Type Activities Funds Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,346,537 § 1,028464 §$ 7,375,001
Restricted Assets 1.565.436 : 1.565.436
Total $§ 7911973 § 1,008464 § 8940437
The carrying amount of cash on hand, deposits and investments at June 30, 2015, is as follows:
Amount
Demand Accounts $ 238,169
Fiscal Agent (QZAB) 1,565,436
County Investment Pool 7.136.832
Total $ 8940437
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Cash resources of the School District are held and managed by the Fergus County Treasurer pursuant to State Law. They are
combined with cash resources of other governmental entities within Fergus County to form a pool of cash and cash equivalents.
Investments of pooled cash consist primarily of repurchase agreements, U.S. government securitigs, STIP, money markets and
certificates of deposits and are carried at fair value. The School District’s exposure to credit risk is not available to the School
District. Risk in the event of loss is unclear in state law, but appears to be the liability of the Fergus County governnilenjt. Be-
cause of the custodial involvement of the Fergus County government, and the commingling of cash in County deposzts in the
name of the Fergus County Treasurer, full risk classifications according to GASB 40 are available in the Fergus County’s annual
report. There is no known maturity and credit rating of the Fergus County Investment Pool.

Custodial credit risk-deposits: The cash of the extracurricular funds and self-insurance fund are held separately l?y the S.chool
District, not at Fergus County and the deposits may be subject to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk thz'it in ?he
event of a bank failure, the School District's deposits may not be returned to it. The School District does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2015, the deposits were covered by FDIC insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk —~ QZAB Fiscal Agent: Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the fai!urc of the cognterparty,
the School District will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. As of June 30, 2015, the School District’s investment was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Investment Maturities - Book Value

10 or Credit
Lessthan 1 15 6-10 more Quality
Investment Fair Value Year years Years years Rating
Certificates of Deposit $ 1565436 $1.565436 $ $ $ - N/A-

Total Book Value  $1,565,436

2.a RESTRICTED ASSETS

The $1,565,436 of QZAB restricted cash is held by a fiscal agent until the bonds become due.

NOTE3. TAXES RECEIVABLE

The School District is permitted by State statutes to levy taxes up to certain fixed limits for various purposes. The assessed value
of the roll as of January 1, 2014, upon which the levy for the 2015 fiscal year was based, was $1 1,775,920 for the Elementary
School District and $12,725,847 for the High School District. The tax rates assessed for the year ended June 30, 2015 to finance
School District operations and applicable taxes receivable for the elementary and high schools follows:

Taxes
Elementary Fund Mill Levies Receivable
General* 134.34 $ 51,871
Transportation 15.38 7,437
Bus Depreciation - 6
Tuition 3.28 952
Technology 5.22 2,011
Debt Service* 10.28 4,023
Building Reserve 8.32 3,205
High School Fund
General* 78.98 32,885
Transportation 6.98 3,220
Bus Depreciation 3.99 1,160
Tuition 2.14 756
Adult Education 6.46 2,703
Technology 4.26 1,783
Building Reserve* 7.70 3.220
Total 287.33 $ 115,232

* Denotes Major Funds

25




NOTE 4.

LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

NOTE 5.

Elementary Fund Amount Due From
School Food Services $ 1,616 - State of Montana
Miscellaneous 68,204  State of Montana
Miscellaneous 2,223 MBI Institute
Miscellaneous 1,065 Retiree

High School Fund
Miscellaneous 1,585 State of Montana
Miscellaneous 8,182  State of Montana
Traffic Education 4.900 State of Montana

Total $ 87715

* Denotes Major Funds

- Due from other governments represent amounts due to the School District for costs incurred but not reimbursed by third party
grantors. The amounts reported and the organization due from are noted below:

Reason

School food service reimbursement
Title I - School-wide reimbursement

Travel reimbursement
Health insurance premium

Perkins grant reimbursement
ABLE grant reimbursement

Traffic education reimbursement

CAPITAL ASSETS, DEPRECIATION AND NET CAPITAL ASSETS

5. a

5.b.

At June 30, 2015, the schedule of changes in general capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities:

Non-depreciable:
Land

Construction in progress
Total Non-depreciable

Depreciable:
Buildings

Improvements other than

buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total Depreciable

Accumulated Depreciatjon:
Buildings
Improvements other than
buildings
Machinery and equipment
Total Depreciation

Net Depreciable Assets
Net General Capital Assets

Balance Additions/ Balance
July 1, 2014 Donations Deletions June 30, 2015
$ 590,530 $ - $ - 3 590,530
- 32.467 - 32.467
$ 590.530 $ 32467 § - 3 622,997
$ 11,309,206 $ - - $ 11,309,206
1,056,843 154,139 - 1,210,982
3.209.131 226,094 (72.104) 3.363.121
$ 15575.180 $ 380,233 § (72.10y $ 15.883.309
$ (6,182,571) § (272,054) $ - § (6,454,625)
(778,256) (51,989) - (830,245)
(2.417.458) (204.756) 71.800 (2.550.414)
$ (9.378285) $ (528.799) §$ 71.800 $ (9,835284)
6.196.896 (148.566) (304) 6,048,025
§ 6787426 $ (116099 $ (304) $_ 6,671,022

General capital asset depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Function
Instructional
Media
School Administration
Operation & Maintenance
Transportation
School Food
Extracurricular
Unallocated

Total Depreciation Expense

Amount

22,953
2,800
6,282
307,031
165,201
3,375
6,917

14.240

$ 528,799
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NOTE 6. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

6. a. At June 30, 2015, the schedule of changes in general long-term debt follows:
Principal
New Debt Payments

Governmental Activities

Balance and Other and Other Balance Due within
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year

Bonds and Notes Payable:

QZAB Bonds $ 2087250 $ - $ - $ 2087250 $ -
Other Liabilities:

Compensated Absences $ 630,300 $ 53,990 $ - $ 684290 $ 228,097

Retirement Incentive 84,000 48,000 (37,151) 94,849 62,000

Accrued Pension - 8,647,917 (198,696) 8,449,221 -

Other Post-Employment

Benefits (OPEB) 1,572,996 179,370 (590,555) 1,161,811 -
Total Other Liabilities $ 2287296 $ 8929277 $ (826,402) $ 10,390,171 $ 290,097

Total Governmental
Activities - Long-Term Debt: $ 4,374,546

(2

8,929,277 $ (826,402) $ 12,477,421 $ 290,097

6.b.  QZABBONDS

The elementary district issued QZAB bonds in fiscal year 2009 for the repair of the middle school roof and replacement of a heat-
ing and ventilation system in elementary school buildings. QZAB bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit
of the District. These bonds all mature in 8 years. The elementary district will make payments to a sinking fund with the U.S.
Bank of $260,906. The first payment was made in June 2010. Interest is earned on the sinking fund at 2%, which is the same
interest rate of the bonds. Therefore, when the bonds mature in 8 years, the sinking fund will have the total payment. The amount
outstanding is the total value of the bonds sold. The cash in the sinking fund is shown in the total cash held by the district. Inter-
est earned on the sinking funds is added to the total available to pay the bonds when they come due. Cash in the sinking fund at
June 30, 2014 is $1,565,436 and is part of the elementary debt service fund. These bonds were issued for the terms and payment
schedules indicated in the following schedule:

Outstanding

Interest Length of Maturity Amount June 30
Description Issue Date Rate Loan Date Issued 2015
QZAB Bonds June 2009 .20% 8 Years June 2018 $ 2,087,250 $ 2,087,250

Debt service requirements to maturity for principal and interest for all bonded long term obligations are as follows:

For the year

ended 6/30: Elementary
Principal Interest
2016 $ 257,775 3 3,131
2017 257,255 3,653
Totals $ 515030 $ 6,784

6. c. RETIREMENT INCENTIVE

The District offered certified teachers a one-time incentive to retire as of June 30, 2014 and 2015. The incentive offered $500 per
month for each teacher, who accepted the offer, for a period of 24 months for a total liability of $12,000 per teacher. The changes
in the retirement incentive liability are noted below.

Number of Outstanding
Length of Participants Maturity Amount June 30
Description Issue Date Loan Date Issued 2015
Retirement Incentive June 2014 2 Years 7 8/15/2016 $ 84,000 $ 46,849
Retirement Incentive June 2015 2 Years 4 6/30/2017 48,000 48,000

$ 132,000 $ 94,849
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 7. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

7. a PROPERTY TAXES

Elementary Fund

General*
Transportation
Bus Depreciation
Tuition
Technology
Debt Service*
Building Reserve
High School Fund
General*
Transportation
Bus Depreciation
Tuition
Adult Education
Technology
Building Reserve*
Total
* Denotes Major Funds

Amount
$ 51,871
7,437
6
952
2,011
4,023
3,205

32,885
3,220
1,160

756
2,703
1,783

3.220

$ 115,232

NOTE 8. UNEARNED INCOME

Reason

Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable

Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Taxes Receivable

The amount displayed on the financial statements as unearned income relates to student who have prepaid lunches.

NOTE 9. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Elementary Fund

Miscellaneous

High School Fund
Traffic Education
Inter-local Agreement

Total

* Denotes Major Funds

Governmental Type Activities
Governmental Type Activities

Total

Amount REASON
Correction of double recorded due from other governments in the

$

(5.000) -

(5,635) prior year.

(211)  Prior year traffic education reimbursement

3 (10.846)

590,555
(9.081.091)

PERS

$ (8.501.382)

NOTE 10. INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN/OUT

High School Fund - In
Inter-local Agreement
Inter-local Agreement
Inter-local Agreement

Inter-local Agreement
Inter-local Agreement
Inter-local Agreement
Inter-local Agreement
Total
* Denotes Major Funds

Amount
$ 21,826
41,077
32,387
$ 84,639
40,000
43,930
130,000
$§ 393859

Elementary Fund - Qut
General

General

General

High School Fund - Qut
General

General

General

Transportation
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Reimbursement of prior year earnest money

Agreement to prior year actuarial evaluation for OPEB.
Implementation of GASB 68 — pension accrual for TRS and

Purpose of Transfer
Technology services

Curriculum services
Operating and maintenance services

Technology services

Curriculum services

Operating and maintenance services
Transportation services




LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description - The School District provides the same health care plan to all of its members. The School.District }.1ad fewer
than 100 plan participants and thus qualified to use an Alternative Measurement Method instead of an actuarial valuatlon. t.o de-
termine the OPEB liability. Valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future and estimated amounts are subject to continued revision as actual results are compared with past expec-
tations and new estimates are made about the future. Projections of benefits for the plan are based on types of beneﬁjts provided
under the current plan. The valuation assumed that 45% of plan participants would elect to continue coverage after retirement.

Funding Policy - The government pays OPEB liabilities on a pay as you go basis. The trust fund for future liabilities has not
been established. Funding status and progress as of July 1, 2012 was as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 4,196,710
Actuarial value of plan assets 0
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 41 1

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 7,517,359
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 56%

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligations - The government's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense)
is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount determined in accordance with the
parameter of GASB statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed (30) years.
The following table shows the components of the government's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed
to the plan, and the changes in the government's net OPEB obligation for the valuation performed at July 1, 2012

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 346,674
Interest on net OPEB obligation 0
Adjustment to ARC (590.555)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 179,370
Contribution made 0
Increase in net OPEB obligation (411,185)
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 1,572,996
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 11 11

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used:

Actuarial Cost Method Unit Credit Cost Method
Average age of retirement (based on historical data) 65
Discount rate (average anticipated rate) 4.25%
Average Salary Increase 2.50%
Health care cost rate trend

Year % Increase

2016 7.5%

2017 7.0%

2018 6.5%

2019 6.0%

2020 5.5%

2021 and after 5.0%

NOTE 12. CONSTRUCTION OR SIMILAR COMMITMENTS

On May 6, 2015 the School District entered into a Buy-Sell Agreement with the Lewistown Municipal Airport (Airport). The
Airport is purchasing the bus bam from the school district for $250,500. The $10,000 earnest money was recorded as revenue
during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and the remaining $240,500 will be recorded as revenue on the closing date of November

3,2015. Risk of loss on the property remains with the School District until closing. At the date of closing the risk of loss shall
pass to the Airport.

The School District is in the process of remodeling and adding an addition to the bus barn building. The remodel and addition is
expected to be completed by the closing date of the sale of the property to the Airport.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District, is exposed to various types of risk of loss, including: a) damage to and loss of property and .contgnts; b)
employee torts; ¢) professional liability, i.e. errors and omissions; d) environmental damage; ¢) workers' compensation, 1.¢. em-
ployee injuries and f) medical insurance costs of employees. Several methods are used to provide insurance for these risks.
Commercial policies, transferring all risks of loss, except for relatively small deductible amounts, are purchased for property apd
contents damage, employee torts, professional liabilities, and employee medical insurance. The School District has joineq ‘w1th
other School Districts throughout the state into an interlocal common risk pool to insure workers compensation for all participat-
ing School Districts in a self-insurance pool. The Workers Compensation Risk Retention Program is managed by a board of
directors elected annually. Members are responsible for fully funding the Workers Compensation Risk Retention Program
through the payment of annual premiums accessed. There is no other liability to the School District other than timely payments
of premiums. The School District can withdraw from the Workers Compensation Risk Retention Program with 60 days’ notice at
any time. The School District has no coverage for potential losses from environmental damages.

Levels of insurance have not changed materially from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage limits
during the current or each of the two previous years.

NOTE 14, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The School District participates in two state-wide, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit retirement plans which cover
all School District employees, except certain substitute teachers and part-time, non-teaching employees. The Teachers' Retire-
ment System (TRS) covers teaching employees, including administrators and aides. The Public Employee Retirement System
(PERS) covers nonteaching employees. The plans are established under State law and are administered by the State of Montana.

Both plans issue publicly available annual reports, stand-alone financial statements, actuarial valuations and experience studies.
Those reports may be obtained from the following:

Teachers Retirement System Public Employees Retirement System
P.O. Box 200139 P.0. Box 200131

1500 Sixth Avenue 100 N. Park Avenue Suite 200
Helena, MT 59620-0139 Helena, MT 59620-0131

Phone: 406-444-3134 Phone: 406-444-3154
www.trs.mt.gov www.mpera.mt.gov

14, a. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The Montana Public Employee Retirement Administration (MPERA) and the Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) prepares its
financial statements using the accrual basis of accounting. For the purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred
inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, Pension Expense, information about the fiduciary net
position and additions to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been determined on the same accrual basis as they are re-
ported by MPERA and TRS. For this purpose, member contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due.
Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Revenues are recognized in the accounting period they are earned and become measurable. Benefit payments and refunds are
recognized in the accounting period when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Expenses are recognized in the
period incurred.

Investments are reported at fair value. MPERA and TRS adhere to all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) statements.

14.b.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

The PERS-Defined Benefit Retirement Plan (DBRP), administered by the Montana Public Employee Retirement Administration
(MPERA), is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing plan established July 1, 1945, and governed by Title 19, chapters 2 & 3, Montana
Code Annotated (MCA). This plan covers the State, local governments, certain employees of the Montana University System,
and school districts.

All new members are initially members of the PERS-DBRP and have a 12-month window during which they may choose to re-
main in the PERS-DBRP or join the PERS-DCRP by filing an irrevocable election. Members may not be members of both the
defined contribution and defined benefit retirement plans. All new members from the universities also have a third option to join
the university system’s Montana University System Retirement Program (MUS-RP). For members that choose to join the PERS-
DCRP or the MUS-RP, a percentage of the employer contributions will be used to pay down the liability of the PERS-DBRP.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

The PERS-DBRP provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Bepeﬁts are :cstab-
lished by state law and can only be amended by the Legislature. Benefits are based on eligibility, years of service, and highest
average compensation. Member rights are vested after five years of service.

14.b. 1. SUMMARY OF BENEFITS

Member’s highest average compensation (HAC)

Hired prior to July 1, 2011 - highest average compensation during any consecutive 36 months; Hired on or after July 1, 2011 -
highest average compensation during any consecutive 60 months; Hired on or after July 1, 2013 — 110% annual cap on compen-
sation considered as part of a member’s highest average compensation.

Eligibility for benefit (Service retirement):

Hired prior to July 1, 2011: Age 60, 5 years of membership service; Age 65, regardless of membership service; or any age, 30
years of membership service.

Hired on or after July 1. 2011: Age 65, 5 years of membership service; Age 70, regardless of membership service.

Early retirement, actuarially reduced: ) )
Hired prior to July 1,2011: Age 50, 5 years of membership service; or any age, 25 years of membership service.

Hired on or after July 1, 2011: Age 55, 5 years of membership service.

14.5. 2. OVERVIEW OF CONTRIBUTIONS

1. Rates are specified by state law for periodic employer and employee contributions. The State legislature has the authority
to establish and amend contribution rates to the plan.
2. Member contributions to the system:

a.  Plan members are required to contribute 7.90% of member’s compensation. Contributions are deducted from each
member’s salary and remitted by participating employers.

b.  The 7.90% member contributions is temporary and will be decreased to 6.9% on January 1 following actuary valua-
tion results that show the amortization period has dropped below 25 years and would remain below 25 years follow-
ing the reduction of both the additional employer and additional member contribution rates.

3. Employer contributions to the system:

a.  State and University System employers are required to contribute 8.27% of members’ compensation.

b.  Local government entities are required to contribution 8.17% of members’ compensation.

. School district employers contributed 7.90% of members’ compensation.

d.  Following the 2013 Legislative Session, PERS-employer contributions were temporarily increased. Effective July 1,
2013, employer contributions increased 1.0%. Beginning July 1, 2014, employer contributions will increase an addi-
tional 0.1% a year over 10 years, through 2024. The employer additional contributions including the 0.27% added in
2007 and 2009, terminates on January 1 following actuary valuation results that show the amortization period of the
PERS-DBRP has dropped below 25 years and would remain below 25 years following the reductions of both the ad-
ditional employer and member contributions rates.

e.  Effective July 1, 2013, the additional employer contributions for DCRP and MUS-RP is allocated to the defined ben-
efit plan’s Plan Choice Rate unfinded liability.

f.  Effective July 1, 2013, employers are required to make contributions on working retirees’ compensation. Member
contributions for working retirees are not required.

4. Non Employer Contributions

a.  Special Funding

i.  The State contributes 0.1% of members’ compensation on behalf of local government entities.

ii.  The State contributes 0.37% of members’ compensation on behalf of school district entities.
b.  Not Special Funding

i.  The State contributes from the Coal Tax Severance fund

14.b.3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

The Total Pen;ion Liability as of June 30, 2014, is based on the results of an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2014. There
were several significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure the Total Pension Liability. The actuarial assumptions

used in Fhe June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of the last actuarial experience study, dated May 2010 for the six
year period July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2009. Among those assumptions were the following:
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

General Wage Growth* 4.00%
*includes Inflation a 3.00%
Merit Increases 0% to 6%
Investment Return 7.75%

Postretirement Benefit Increases
3% for members hired prior to July 1, 2007
1.5% for members hired on or after July 1, 2007

After the member has completed 12 full months of retirement, the member’s benefit increases by the applicable percentage (pro-
vided below) each January, inclusive of other adjustments to the member’s benefit.

*At this time as a result of permanent injunction issued in the AMRPE vs State litigation, the GABA rate in effect is being used
in the calculation. Clarification of the GABA rate for members hired on or after J uly 1, 2013 is pending.

¢ Mortality assumptions among contributing members, terminated vested members, service retired members and beneficiaries
based on RP 2000 Combined Employee and Annuitant Mortality Tables projected to 2015 with scale AA.

*  Mortality assumptions among Disabled Retirees are based on RP 2000 Combined Employee and Annuitant Mortality Tables
with no projections. No future mortality improvement is assumed.

14.b. 4. DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from participating plan members, employers, and non- employer contributing entities
will be made based on the Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rates under Montana Code Anno-
tated. The State contributes 0.1% of salaries for local governments and 0.37% for school districts. In addition, the State contrib-
utes coal severance tax and interest money from the general fund. The interest is contributed monthly and the severance tax is
contributed quarterly. Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be adequate to make all
the projected future benefit payments of current plan members through the year 2122. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Lia-
bility. No municipal bond rate was incorporated in the discount rate. '

14.b.5. TARGET ALLOCATIONS

Asset Class Target Asset Allocation  Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return
Cash Equivalents 2.00% -0.25%
Domestic Equity 36.00% 4.80%
Foreign Equity 18.00% 6.05%
Fixed Income 24.00% 1.68%
Private Equity 12.00% 8.50%
Real Estate 8.00% 4.50%

The long-term expected return on pension plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared for the Sys-
tem. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering fiscal years 2003 through 2009, is outlined in a report dated
May 2010, which is located on the MPERA website. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return
assumption including rates of return adopted by similar public sector systems, and by using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and infla-
tion) are developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
then adding expected inflation. The assumption is intended to be a long term assumption and is not expected to change absent a
significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters
expected returns in future years. Best estimates are presented as the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class in-
cluded in the System’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, is summarized in the above table.

14.c.  TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TRS)

Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS or the System) is a mandatory-participation multiple-employer cost- sharing defined-benefit
public pension plan that provides retirement services to individuals employed as teachers, administrators, and in other profession-
al and skilled positions employed in public education in Montana.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

The TRS Board is the governing body of the System and the TRS staff administers the system in conformity with the laws set
forth in Title 19, chapter 20 of the Montana Code Annotated, and administrative rules set forth in Title 2, chapter 44 of the Ad-
ministrative Rules of Montana.

14.¢c. 1. SUMMARY OF BENEFITS o
Through June 30, 2013, all members enrolled in TRS participated in a single-tiered plan ("Tier One"). Employees with a mini-
mum of 25 years of service or who have reached age 60 with 5 years of service are eligible to receive an annual retirement bene-
fit equal to creditable service years divided by 60 times the average final compensation. Final compensation is the average of the
highest three consecutive years of earned compensation. Benefits fully vest after 5 years of creditable service. Vested employec'ts
may retire at or after age 50 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Beginning July 1, 2013, new members in TRS participate in
a second benefit tier ("Tier Two"), which differs from Tier One as follows:

+ Tier Two uses a 5-year average final compensation (as opposed to 3-year AFC in Tier One) )

» Tier Two provides for unreduced service retirement benefits at age 60 with 5 years of creditable service or at age 55 with at
least 30 years of creditable service (rather than at age 60 with 5 years of service or at any age with creditable service in 25
years in Tier One)

» Tier Two provides for early retirement benefits with 5 years of creditable service at age 55 (rather than age 50 in Tier One) .

* Tier Two has 2 one percent higher normal employee contribution rate (though a temporary 1% supplemental employee contri-
bution rate is also now currently in place for Tier One members), and

* Tier Two provides for an enhanced benefit calculation - 1.85% x AFC x years of creditable service - for members retiring with
at least 30 years of creditable service and at least 60 years of age (rather than 1.6667 x AFC x years of creditable service) _

A guaranteed annual benefit adjustment (GABA) is payable on January 1st of each calendar year for each retiree who has re-
ceived at least 36 monthly retirement benefit payments prior to that date. The GABA is applicable to both Tier One and Tier Two
members. The GABA calculated prior to July 1, 2013, was 1.5% of the benefit payable as of January 1st. Effective July 1, 2013,
the GABA to be calculated for Tier One and Tier Two members each year may vary from 0.5% to 1.5% based on the retirement
system’s funding status and the period required to amortize any unfunded accrued actuarial liability as determined in the
prior actuarial valuation. The legislative enactment that allows for reduction of the GABA for Tier One members is currently
being litigated. A temporary restraining order requires continued calculation of the GABA at the full 1.5% rate for Tier One
members pending resolution of the litigation.

14.¢. 2. OVERVIEW OF CONTRIBUTIONS

1. Rates are specified by state law for periodic employer and employee contributions. The State legislature has the authority
to establish and amend contribution rates to the plan.
2. Member contributions to the system:

a.  Plan members are required to contribute 8.15% of member’s compensation. Contributions are deducted from each

member’s salary and remitted by participating employers.
3. - Employer contributions to the system:

a.  State and University System employers are required to contribute 9.85% of members’ compensation and employer.
This amount shall increase by 1.00% for fiscal year 2014 and increase by 0.10% each fiscal year through 2024 until
the total employer contribution is equal to 11.85% of re-employed retiree compensation.

b.  School districts and other entities are required to contribution 7.47% of members’ compensation. This amount shall

increase by 1.00% for fiscal year 2014 and increase by 0.10% each fiscal year through 2024.
4. Non Employer Contributions

a.  Special Funding
1. The State contributes 2.49% of members’ compensation on behalf of School Districts and Other Employers.
ii. The State contributes 0.11% of members’ compensation on behalf of State and University Employers.
ili. The State is also required to contribute $25 million in perpetuity payable July 1st of each year.

14.¢.3. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
The Total Pension Liability as of June 30, 2014, is based on the results of an actuarial valuation date of July 1, 2014. There were
several significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure the total pension liability. The actuarial assumptions used in the

July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of the last actuarial experience study, dated May 1, 2014. Among those assump-
tions were the following:

Total Wage Increases* 8.51%
Investment Return 7.75%
Price Inflation 3.25%
Postretirement Benefit Increases 1.50%

(Starting three years after retirement)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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*  Mortality among contributing members, service retired members, and beneficiaries
- For Males: RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for ages 50 and above and the RP 2000 Combined Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for ages below 50, set back four years, with mortality improvements projected by Scale BB
to 2018.
- ForFemales: RP 2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for ages 50 and above and the RP 2000 Combined Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table for ages below 50, set back two years, with mortality improvements projected by Scale BB
10 2018.
*  Mortality among disabled members
- For Males: RP 2000 Disabled Mortality Table for Males, set forward one year, with mortality improvements projected
by Scale BB to 2018.
- For Females: RP 2000 Disabled Mortality Table for Females, set forward five years, with mortality improvements pro-
jected by Scale BB to 2018,

*Total Wage Increases include 4.00% general wage increase assumption and 4.51% merit and longevity increases.
14.c. 4. DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the dis-
count rate assumed that contributions from participating plan members, employers, and non-employer contributing entities will
be made based on the Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rates under Montana Code Annotated.
In addition to the contributions the State general fund will contribute $25 million annually to the System payable July 1st of each
year. Based on those assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be adequate to make all the projected
future benefit payments of current plan members through the year 2116. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pen-
sion plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. No munic-
ipal bond rate was incorporated in the discount rate.

14.¢c.5. TARGET ALLOCATIONS

Asset Class Target Asset Allocation  Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return
Broad US Equity 36.00% 4.80%
Broad International Equity 18.00% 6.05%
Private Equity 12.00% 8.50%
Intermediate Bonds 23.40% 1.50%
Core Real Estate 4.00% 4.50%
High Yield Bonds 2.60% 3.25%
Non-Core Real Estate 4.00% 7.50%

The long-term expected return on pension plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared every four
years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is outlined in a
report dated May 1, 2014. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption including long
term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate rang-
es of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the in-
vestment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected furture real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The
capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 10-year horizon and may not be
useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension plans which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is in-
tended to be a long term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in
the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. Best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, is
summarized in the above table.

14.d.  SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

In accordance with GASB 68 regarding the disclosure of the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate, the above table presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the net pen-

sion liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00% lower (6.75%) or 1.00% higher (8.75%) than the
current rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase

6.75%) Rate (8.75%)
PERS
Net Pension Liability $ 1982274732 $ 1.246.010898 § 625044.646
Employer’s proportion of Net Pension Liability §_ 2762473 $ 1,736,425 § 871.054
TRS
Net Pension Liability $_ 2137950777 $§ 1.538.849.077 $ 1,032.700.256
Employer’s proportion of Net Pension Liability  $ 9326209 $ 671279 $ 4,504.864

14.e.  NET PENSION LIABILITY

In accordance with GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, employers are required to recognize
and report certain amounts associated with their participation in the Public Employees® Retirement System (PERS) and TRS.
Statement 68 became effective June 30, 2015 and includes requirements to record and report their proportionate share of the col-
lective Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Inflows and Deferred Qutflows of resources associated with pensions.

In accordance with Statement 68, PERS and TRS have special funding situations in which the State of Montana is legally respon-
sible for making contributions directly to PERS and TRS on behalf of the employers. Due to the existence of this special funding
situation, local governments and school districts are required to report the portion of the State of Montana’s proportionate share
of the collective Net Pension Liability that is associated with the employer.

The State of Montana also has a funding situation that is not Special Funding whereby the State General Fund provides contribu-
tions from the Coal Severance Tax and interest to the PERS. All employers are required to report the portion of Coal Tax Sever-
ance Tax and interest attributable to the employer.

PERS Net Pension Liability Percent of
asof 6/30/13 asof 6/30/14  Collective NPL
Employer Proportionate Share $ 2234512 $ 1,736,425 0.1394%
State of Montana Proportionate Share associated with Employer 104.456 81.172 0.6777%
Total $§ 2338968 § 181759 0.8171%
TRS Net Pension_Liability Percent of
as of 6/30/13  as of 6/30/14  Collective NPL
Employer Proportionate Share $ 7,759,139 $§ 6,712,796 0.4362%
State of Montana Proportionate Share associated with Employer 5.316.991 4,599.979 0.2989%
Total $ 13076130 $11.312.775 0.7351%

At June 30, 2015, the employer recorded a liability of $1,736,425 and $6,712,796 for PERS and TRS, respectively, for its pro-
portionate share of the Net Pension Liability. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the Total Pen-
sion Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014. The
employer’s proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on the employer’s contributions received by PERS and TRS
during the measurement period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014, relative to the total employer contributions received from
all of PERS’ and TRS participating employers. At June 30, 2014, the employer’s proportion was 0.1394 percent and 0.4362
percent for PERS and TRS, respectively.

Changes in actuarial assumptions and methods: Any changes can be obtained from PERS or TRS as in the first part of this
note.

Changes in benefit terms: There have been no changes in benefit terms since the previous measurement date.

Changes in proportionate share: There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective Net Pension Liabil- |

ity and the employer’s reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer’s proportionate
share of the collective NPL.

14. 1. PENSION EXPENSE

PERS Pension Expense as of 6/30/14
Employer’s Proportionate Share $ 81,623
State of Montana Proportionate Share associated with the Employer 55,233
Total $ 136,856
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. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
L For the year-ended June 30, 2015

: TRS Pension Expense as of 6/30/14
I Employer’s Proportionate Share $ 455383
\5 State of Montana Proportionate Share associated with the Employ-
] er 257.582
- Total $ 712966

L At June 30, 2015, the employer recognized a Pension Expense of $136,856 and $712,966 for its proportionate share of the PERS’
and TRS Pension Expense, respectively. The employer also recognized grant revenue of $55,233 and $257,582 for the support
provided by the State of Montana for its proportionate share of the Pension Expense that is associated with the employer for PERS”
and TRS, respectively.

14.g. RECOGNITION OF BEGINNING DEFERRED OUTFLOW — GASB 71

i At June 30, 2015, the employer recognized a beginning deferred outflow of resources for the employers FY 2014 contributions of
o $128,653 and $783,908, for PERS’ & TRS, respectively.

14.h.  DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS

At June 30, 2015, the employer reported its proportionate share of PERS’ and TRS’ deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS and TRS from the following sources:

[
b PERS PERS TRS TRS
b Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows  Deferred Qutflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
u Differences between actual and expected
1 experience $ - $ - $ 66,405 by -
Changes in assumptions - - 152,140 -
} ; Difference between projected and actual
el earnings on pension plan investments - 448,664 - 1,039,718
M Changes in proportion differences be-
| 3 tween employer contributions and pro-
' portionate share of contributions - 4,807 n/a N/A

I Difference between actual and expected
| | contributions - - 103,355 -
- #Contributions paid subsequent to the

measurement date - FY 2015 Contribu-
I tions $ 132987 $ - $ 520,550 3 -
! Total $ 132987 $ 453471 $ 842,450 $ 1039718

#Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the employer’s contributions subsequent
3 to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other
) 15 amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in Pension Expense as

follows:
PERS PERS PERS TRS TRS TRS
Amount recognized Amount recognized
_ in Pension Expense in Pension Expense
o Year end- Deferred Deferred as an increase or Deferred Deferred as an increase or
] ed June Outflows of Inflows of (decrease) to Pen- Outflows of Inflows of (decrease) to Pen-
30: Resources Resources sion Expense Resources Resources sion Expense
2016 $ - § 113,768 § (113,768) $ 107300 $ 259,930 $ (152,630)
4 2017 $ - § 113,768 § (113,768) $ 107300 $ 259,930 $ (152,630)
2018 $ - § 112,166 $ (112,166) $ 107,300 $ 259,930 $ (152,630)
2019 $ - 3 - $ - $ - § 259930 $ (259,930)
2020 $ -5 - 5 - 3 - 3 - 3 -
_ Thereafter $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 -
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14. 1. PENSION AMOUNTS TOTAL FOR EMPLOYER — EMPLOYER’S PROPORTION OF TRS AND PERS PENSION
AMOUNTS
The employer’s The employer’s
proportionate share  proportionate share ~ The employer’s
associated with associated with Total Pension
PERS TRS Amounts
Total Pension Liability $ 8,638,930 $ 22,644,580 $ 31,283,510
Fiduciary Net Position $§ 6,902,505 $ 15,931,784 $ 22,834,289
Net Pension Liability $ 1,736,425 $ 6,712,796 $ 8,449,221
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ - $ 321,900 $ 321,900
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 453,471 $ 1,039,718 $ 1,493,189
Pension Expense $ 136,856 $ 712,966 $ 849,822

NOTE 15. COOPERATIVE

15.a.  SPECIAL EDUCATION

The Lewistown School District No. 1 is 2 member of the Ceniral Montana Learning Resource Center Cooperative, a Special Ed-
ucation Cooperative. The financial records of the Cooperative are prepared and maintained by the Cooperative Clerk. The fi-
nancial records of the Cooperative are separate from those of Lewistown School District No. 1, and the financial statements of
the Cooperative are not included in the School Districts' financial statements. The Cooperative's financial statements are audited
separately from those of the School District. All revenue received, including Federal, State, or other types of grant payments, and
the financial support provided by each of the Cooperative's members are deposited into the Cooperative's funds, which are main-
tained in the custody of the Fergus County Treasurer. The Superintendent of Public Instruction may directly deposit to the Coop-
erative the State and Federal portion of any participating member School District's budgeted costs for contracted special educa-
tion services. All capital assets of the Cooperative are included in the Cooperative's financial staternents.

A Joint Board of Directors governs the Cooperative. The Joint Board has the power to set policies, enter into contracts, review

the performance of the Cooperative annually, review the financial management of the Cooperative annually, and set and approve
the annual fiscal budget of the Cooperative.

NOTE 16. RECREATION FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

The School District and City of Lewistown entered into an agreement whereby the school district would use the Lewistown Civic
Center for activities like: basketball, volleyball, softball, soccer, floor hockey, superstars, badminton, snowshoeing, roller skating,
cross country skiing and table tennis.. The School District costs to include an initial payment of $4,977 pius $26.00 per hour for
maintenance equipment and operators as needed.

NOTE 17. EVELYN ECCLES FOUNDATION

Miss Eveline Eccles, who taught dramatics and English, as well as serving as Librarian at Fergus County High School from 1925
to 1941, established the Eveline Eccles Foundation to establish a loan fund to assist “ambitious youth attain worthwhile heights
of accomplishment” through securing higher education.

At the end of each school year, Trustees may "select from the graduating class a student or students, male or female, who have
best demonstrated his/her ability to conduct scientific research of any kind or character which looks to the advancement of the
best interests of society" and provide a loan from the fund to aid In their securing higher education.

If a student is selected, the Trustees will determine the amount of the loan, “In amounts sufficient to materiafly aid and enable
students to attend an Institution of higher learning.” A no-Interest promissory note (signed by student and parent as cosigner) will
be executed which shall become due and payable at such time as may be arranged, but not In excess of ten years after the loan
agreement has been made. The objective of the foundation is to create a revolving fund to be constantly available.

Students selected may receive a $2,000 loan for each four years with a payback of $125 per month for 64 months beginning four
years from execution of the notes.

At June 30, 2015 there were three students with outstanding loan balances with one paying back on a monthly basis. The receiv-
able balance of $11,755 is reported in the fiduciary endowment funds.
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For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE {8. JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENTS

Joint ventures are legal entities or other organizations that result in a contractual arrangement and that are own.ed, operat'ed, or
governed by two or more participants. Each participant retains both an ongoing financial interest and an ongoing financial re-
sponsibility.

18 a. MULTIDISTRICT COOPERATIVE

Section 20-3-363, MCA allows for the creation of a multidistrict cooperative between any School District and other public eptity
under Title 20, Chapter 9 Part 7, MCA. The parties in a multidistrict cooperative may mutually agree to perform any services,
activities, and undertakings of the participants and provide for the joint funding and operation and maintenance of all participants
in the agreement.

18.a. 1. TECHNICAL SUPPORT

The School District has entered into an agreement with Lewistown Elementary, Fergus High School, Denton Elementary, Denton
High School, Grass Range Elementary, Grass Range High School, Harlowton Elementary School, Harlowton High School, Ayers
Elementary, Roy K-12 Schools, Winifred K-12 Schools, Moore Elementary, Moore High School, Deerfield Elementary, Spring
Creek Colony Elementary, King Colony Elementary, Hobson K-12 Schools, Judith Gap Elementary, Judith Gap High School,
Stanford K-12 Schools and the Central Montana Learning Resource Center Cooperative to provide technology services to each
participating school district and cooperative.

Fergus High School is the designated prime agency and is responsible for the financial administration of the multidistrict cooper-
ative. The activity of the multidistrict cooperative is accounted for in fund 82 of the Fergus High School. During fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015 Fergus High School received $121,357 in charges for annual technical support fees.

18.2.2. INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT

Lewistown Elementary and Fergus High School set up an inter-local agreement fund that is accounted for in fund 82 of the Fer-
gus High School. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 the School District transferred $95,290 and $168,569 out of the ele-

mentary and high school district's general funds into the inter-local agreement fund. These funds are tract for general fund use in
future years.

18.a.3. TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

The School District has entered into an agreement with Lewistown Elementary and Fergus High School, for the purpose of meet-
ing the demands of transporting students. Fergus High School is the designated prime agency and is responsible for the financial

administration of the multidistrict cooperative. The activity of the multidistrict cooperative is accounted for in fund 82 of the
Fergus High School.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Other Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage of
Value of Liability (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered Covered
Fiscal Year Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Ending {(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) {c) (b-a)/c
6/30/10* $ $ 3.783.331 $§ 3.783.331 0% N/A N/A
6/30/11% 3 $ 3.995.369 $ 3.995.369 0% N/A N/A
6/30/12* $ $ 4182059 §$ 4,182.059 0% N/A N/A
6/30/13%* $ $ 4,196,710 $ 4.196.710 0% $ 7.517.359 55.8%
6/30/14*%* $ $ 4352207 $ 4.352.207 0% $ 7.517.359 57.9%
6/30/15%* $ $ 4.553.594 $ 4.553,594 0% $ 7.517.359 60.6%

*Assumptions are based on 2008 data
**Assumptions are based on the actuarial values as of July 1, 2012.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

State of
Employer’s Montana’s
proportionate  proportionate
share of the  share of the
Employer’s  net pension  net pension

Employer’s

proportionate
share of the net  Plan fiduciary
pension liability net position as

proportion liability liability Employer’s as a percentage a percentage
of the net associated associated covered- of its covered- of the total
Year ended pension with the with the employee employee pension
June 30: liability Employer Employer Total payroll payroll liability
2015 139359% § 1736425 § 81,172 $ 1817596 $ 1.632.145 106.39% 79.9 %

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

State of
Employer’s Montana’s
proportionate  proportionate
share of the share of the
Employer’s  net pension  net pension

Employer’s

proportionate
share of the net  Plan fiduciary
pension liability net position as

proportion liability liability Employer’s as a percentage a percentage
of the net associated associated covered- of its covered- of the total
Year ended pension with the with the employee employee pension
June 30: liability Employer Employer Total payroll payroll liability
2015 04362% §_6.712.796 $ 4.599979 $ 11312775 §$_5.537.456 121% 70.36 %

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO MONTANA RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Contributions in Contributions as
relation to the Employer’s a percentage of
Contractually contractually Contribution covered- covered-
Year ended required required deficiency employee employee
June 30: coniributions contributions (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ 128653 $ 128653 3 - $ 1632145 7.882%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Contributions in Contributions as
relation to the Employer’s a percentage of
Contractually contractually Contribution covered- covered-
Year ended required required deficiency employee employee
June 30: contributions contributions (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ _520.550 $  520.550 3 - § 5.537.456 9.401%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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Lewistown School District No.
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59457

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

(Budget and Actual)

ALL BUDGETED MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2015

General (Elem)

General (HS)

Original Final Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual
Revenues:
District levies $ 1,581,966 $§ 1,581,966 $ 1,594,735 § 1,005,176 $ 1,005,176 $ 1,008,450
Interest 5,153 5,153 6,553 2,934 2,934 3,428
Other - - - 24 24 -
State 4,229,784 4,229,784 4,229,784 2,110,455 2,110,455 2,110,455
Total revenues 5,816,903 5,816,903 5,831,072 3,118,589 3,118,589 3,122,333
Expenditures:
Current:
Instructional services 3,785,267 1,415,097
Support services 141,363 106,585
Educational media services 216,375 93,234
General administrative services 866,524 519,159
Operation & maintenance services 635,698 562,960
Transportation services 3,374 32,541
School food services 110,444 27,439
Extracurricular 57,858 184,990
Capital outlay - 8,015
Total expenditures 5,816,903 5,816,903 5,816,903 2,950,020 2,950,020 2,950,020
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over expenditures - - 14,169 - 168,569 168,569 172,313
Other financing sources/uses:
Fund transfers (out) - - - (168,569) (168,569) (168,569)
Total other financial sources/uses - - - (168,569) (168,569) (168,569)
Net changes in fund balances - - 14,169 - - 3,744
Fund balance:
Beginning of the year 463,662 314,259
End of the year $ 477,831 $ 318,003

The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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Lewistown School District No. 1 |
Fergus County t
Lewistown, Montana 59457
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ‘
(Budget and Actual) e
ALL BUDGETED MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS |
For the year ended June 30, 2015 L
Flexibility Fund (Elem.) Flexibilit}f Fund (HS)
Original Final Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual
Revenues:
District levies $ - 8 - % -8 - % - 3 -
Interest 1,000 1,000 1,464 900 900 R
Other - - 1,052 - - 1,476
State 39,519 39,519 39,519 7,099 7,099 7,099
Total revenues 40,519 40,519 42,035 7,999 7,999 9,646
Expenditures:
Current;
Instructional services 31,651 5,500
Support services - -
Educational media services - ) o
General administrative services - - H
Operation & maintenance services - - -
Transportation services - :
School food services - - o
Extracurricular : - -
Capital outlay - -
Total expenditures 199,073 199,073 31,651 161,301 161,301 5,500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over expenditures (158,554) (158,554) 10,384 (153,302) (153,302) 4,146
Other financing sources/uses: —
Fund transfers (out) - - - - - -
Total other financial sources/uses - - - - - - -
Net changes in fund balances (158,554) (158,554) 10,384 (153,302) (153,302) 4,146 o
Fund balance:
Beginning of the year 158,555 153,302
End of the year $ 168,939 $ 157,448 oy
The accompanying NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS are an integral part of these statements.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE BUDGET VS ACTUAL SCHEDULE
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1. _BUDGETS

l.a.  BUDGETS

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the State of Montana budget laws which are consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, budgeted special revenue funds
including (Transportation, Bus Depreciation, Tuition, Retirement, Adult Education, Technology), debt service fund, apd budget-
ed capital project funds (Building Reserve). All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, unless the School District elects to
encumber supplies and personal property ordered but not received at year end.

l.a.1 GENERAL BUDGET POLICIES:

The School District's funds are either budgeted or non-budgeted in accordance with State statutes. Budgeted funds are those of
which a legal budget must be adopted to have expenditures from such funds and are noted above. All other funds are non-
budgeted, meaning a legal budget is not required in order to spend the cash balance of such a fund. The Schedu_le of Revenu_es,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, Budget vs. Actual, has been prepared on the modified accrual baSIS.Of accounting
and contains financial information for only the major general and special revenue fund budgeted funds. The major funds debt
service and building reserve are not included in the schedule because they are not special revenue funds.

l.a.2  BUDGET OPERATION:

The School District operates within the budget requirements for School Districts as specified by State law. The financial report
reflects the following budgetary standards:

* By the second Monday in July, the County Assessor transmits a statement of the assessed valuation and taxable valuation
of all property in the School District's borders.

*  Before the fourth Monday in July, the County Superintendent estimates the revenue required for each fund.

*  Before the fourth Monday in August, the Board of Trustees must meet to legally adopt the final budget. The final budget
for the general fund is fund total only.

*  Once adopted, the budget can be amended by subsequent Board action. An increase of the total budget of a given fund
requires the adoption of an amended budget in accordance with State statutes.

¢ According to State statutes, the expenditures of a budgeted fund may not legally exceed the adopted budget.

*  Atthe end of a fiscal year, unencumbered appropriations lapse unless specifically obligated by the School District.

NOTE2. ELEMENTARY TRANSPORTATION FUND RECONCILIATION

The Trustees’ Financial Summary is reporting in the elementary fund a $240,500 due from other government and corresponding
revenues. This is reported for budgetary purpose to allow the funds to be spent in the FY 2016 budget. The School District con-
tacted the OPI and this is how they were advised to report the buy-sell agreement on the sale of an asset. Since the buy-sell
agreement specifies the closing date is in November 2015 it is treated as a reconciling item between the TFS and the GAAP fi-
nancial statements. In the subsequent year, these amounts will be reported as a revenue.

NOTE 3. BUDGET AMENDMENT

The District approved a budget amendment due to unanticipated retirement fund costs under the provisions of 20-9-161(1), MCA
for the elementary retirement fund. The budget amendment was for $50,000 and the source of funding to cover the expenditures
shall be the elementary retirement fund reserves. ’
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE BUDGET VS ACTUAL SCHEDULE (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 4. COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ALL

SUB-FUNDS OF THE GENERAL FUND

Revenues:
District levies
Interest

Other

State

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Instructional
services

Support services
Educational media
services

General
administrative
services

Operation &
Maintenance
services
Transportation
services

School food services

Extracurricular
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency)
of revenues

Over expenditures
Other financing
sources/uses:

Fund transfers (out)
Total other financial
sources/uses

Net changes in fund
balances

Fund balance:
Beginning of
the year

End of the year

Sub-fund Sub-fund Sub-fund Sub-fund Sub-fund Sub-fund
Metal Metal
Mines Mines
Flexibility Tax Tax
General Fund (El- General Flexibility =~ Reserve Reserve
(Elem) em.) (HS) Fund (HS) (Elem.) (HS) Total
$1,594,735 § - $ 1,008450 § - 8 - 3 - $2,603,185
6,553 1,464 3,428 1,071 717 1,146 14,439
- 1,052 - 1,476 - - 2,528
4.229.784 39,519 2,110.455 7.099 - - 6,386,857
5.831.072 42.035 3.122.333 9,646 777 1,146 9.007.009
3,680,189 31,651 1,415,097 5,500 - - 5,132,437
141,363 Co- 106,585 - - - 247,948
216,375 - 93,234 - - - 309,609
866,524 - 519,159 - - - 1,385,683
635,698 - 562,960 - - - 1,198,658
3,374 - 32,541 - - - 35915
110,444 - 27,439 - - - 137,883
57,858 - 184,990 - - - 242,848
9.789 - 8.015 - - - 17.804
5,721.614 31.651 2.950.020 5.500 - - 8.708.785
109.458 10,384 172,313 4.146 771 1.146 298,224
- (95,290) - (168.569) - - - (263.859)
(95.290) - (168.569) - - - (263.859)
14,168 10,384 3,744 4,146 777 1,146 34,365
463,662 158.555 314.259 153.302 87.570 166,552 1.343.900
$ 477830 $ 168939 $ 318003 $ 157448 § 88.347 $ 167698 §1,378265
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO THE BUDGET VS ACTUAL SCHEDULE (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

In the reconciliation the general funds, flexibility funds, and metal mines tax reserve funds are added together to get to the aggre-
gate general fund shown as a major fund on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Governmen-
tal Funds. The flexibility funds and metal mines tax reserve funds are maintained as special revenue funds for accounting pur-
poses, however, for external financial reporting they are added to the general fund because they have unassigned fund balance
like the general fund.

On the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Budget and Actual) All Budgeted Major Govern-
mental Funds display budgeted information for the general and major special revenue funds. The Statement presents budgetary
information for the general funds and flexibility funds because they are reported as major funds and have legally adopted budg-
ets. The following major funds are not reported because the metal mines tax reserve fund is a non-budgeted fund special revenue
funds, and the high school building reserve fund is a budgeted capital projects fund.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND BALANCES EXPENDABLE TRUST —

STUDENT ACTIVITY FUNDS
For the year-ended June 30, 2015
Activity Account Name Beginning Revenues Expenses Ending
7/1/2014 6/30/2015
ANNUAL ' 4,355 9,015 4,433 8,937
AP TESTING 2,028 3,517 3,196 2,349
BAND 1,327 677 1,070 934
EASTERN MT JAZZ FESTIVAL 13 - - 13
BPA 1,541 6,792 6,554 1,779
CT MT MENTORS 265 - - 265
CHEERLEADERS 8,799 9,774 7,446 11,127
NHS/CLAWS 329 50 352 27
EAGLE RENAISSANCE 2,911 990 1,056 2,845
FCLUB 147 6,097 6,240 4
FFA 5,701 25,432 23,764 7,369
FCCLA 2,823 21,931 18,747 6,007
FLY FISHING : 221 700 - 921
SPANISH CLUB 1,269 2,265 1,918 1,616
HOW CLUB 1,256 6 - 1,262 =
VICA/SKILLS USA 364 3,307 2,835 836
KEY CLUB 710 2,620 1,538 1,792
ART CLUB 1,467 - 60 1,407
SCIENCE CLUB 3,125 19,899 14,875 8,149
SKICLUB 4,781 5,199 4,335 5,645 Y
STUDENT COUNCIL 19 8,544 7,640 923
THESPIANS 2,359 - 467 1,892
TROPHY 2,281 - - 2,281
VOCAL MUSIC 747 854 107 1,494
DIST. 8§ MUSCH FESTIVAL 4,193 8,141 6,465 5,869
WEIGHT CLUB 2,314 250 262 2,302
AP GOVT 569 - 408 161
CAREER FAIR 2,537 - 37 2,500
CLASS OF 2014 386 (386) - -
CLASS OF 2015 2,509 (651) 1,858 -
CLASS OF 2016 200 12,156 7,455 4,901 ™
CLASS OF 2017 348 - 162 186
CLASS OF 2018 - 150 128 22
SCHOOL SPONSORED X-CURR 43,644 190,557 199,231 34,970
GIRLS SOFTBALL/BOYS CROSS COUNTRY 25,753 25,084 24,113 26,724
GENERAL ACTIVITIES 54,382 12,830 11,105 56,107 :
LC SERVICE COUNCIL 1,044 563 398 1,209
BUILDERS CLUB 142 - - 142
CHEERLEADERS 517 - 69 448 1
CONSUMER TECH 4 3,193 2,688 509
FACS 341 2,039 1,863 517
BC, SC STORE 1,937 4,637 5,058 1,516
MUSIC , 2,452 - - 2,452 »
PHOTO CLUB 4,248 5,097 5,239 4,106
SERVICE LEARNING 569 167 281 455
SKI CLUB 505 8,922 8,494 933
STUDENT COUNCIL 464 1,168 1,436 196 o
NEWS 170 - - 170
GIS CLUB 1,275 - 745 530
COMPUTER SERV LEARNING 129 - - 129
FIELD TRIP SKI DAY 857 - - 857 B
ROBOTICS CLUB 738 - 299 439
EXPEDITION YELLOWSTONE - 5.43 2.435 3.000 )
Total 201,065 407.021 386.862 221.224 -
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

: SCHEDULE OF REPORTED ENROLLMENT
i For the year-ended June 30, 2015

FALL ENROLLMENT —
OCTOBER, 2014
Elementary
Reported Audited Variance
Kindergarten Full 97 97 0
Grade 1-6 522 522 0
- Grade 7- 8 177 177 0
| i Total __ 796 796 0
High School
g Reported Audited Variance
} Grade 9- 12 _354 354 0

Part-time Students

Less than 181 hours 1 1 0
Less than 359 hours 2 2 0
Less than 539 hours 0 0 0
Less than 719 hours 0 0 0
Total Part-time 3 3 0
19 year olds 0 0 0
SPRING ENROLLMENT —
FEBRUARY. 2015
Elementary
r Reported Audited Varijance
’ Kindergarten Full 95 95 0
Grade 1-6 525 525 0
Grade 7- 8 176 176 0
Total 796 796 0
High School
Reported Audited Variance
- Grade 9 - 12 _ 345 345 0

..... Part-time Students
Less than 181 hours
- Less than 359 hours
Less than 539 hours
- Less than 719 hours

Total Part-time
19 year olds

OO0 O = O
OIS O - O
OO oo O
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Lewistown Schoo! District No. 1
Fergus County
Lewistown, Montana 59547

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Federal Pass-Through Program or
Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Award Federal
Grantor/ Program or Cluster Title Number Number Amount Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
PASSED THROUGH MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION:
National Schoo! Lunch Program (Donated Food) (fn2) 10.555 N/A $ 32,101 § 32,101
National School Lunch Program (fn1) 10.555 N/A $ 237919 237,919
School Wellness in Action 10.UNKNOWN N/A $ 691 691
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 270,711
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
PASSED THROUGH CENTRAL MONTANA LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER COOPERATIVE:
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 N/A $ 58,500 $ 58,500
PASSED THROUGH MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION:
Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies
- Part A, Improving Basic Programs 84.010 014 0258 3215 3 412,439 397,562
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84,002 014 0259 5615 $ 33,748 30,116
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 01402598115  § 18,203 18,203
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 504,381
" Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 775,092

The accompanying notes to the SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS are an integral part of this schedule.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of Lewistown
School District No. 1 under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2015 The information in this Sched-
ule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the opera-
tions of Lewistown School District No. 1, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position
or cash flows of Lewistown School District No. 1.

NOTE2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting as used in the governmental fi-
nancial statements. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available

NOTE 3. FOOTNOTES

Fnl ~ No separate funds or accounts maintained, the School District assumes first in first out for program money.
Fn2 — The value of commodities (revenues, expenses or inventory) are noted in the basic financial statements
N/A —Not applicable/ available
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STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 1980
Billings, Montana 59103

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Lewistown School District No. 1
Fergus County

Lewistown, Montana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Lewistown School District No. 1 as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Lewistown School District No. 1's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated October 26, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lewistown School District No. 1's internal con-
trol over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Dis-
trict’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A mate-
rial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weak-
ness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not de-
signed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies as item 2015-001.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lewistown School District No. 1's financial statements are free of mate-
rial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agree-
ments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and ques-
tioned costs Or schedule of findings and responses as item 2015-002.
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Lewistown School District No. 1's Response to Findings

The School District’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of ﬁnd-ings and
questioned costs. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial state-
ments and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 'results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compllancc?. Tl:llS report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control

and compliance. Accogdingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
R -

STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Billings, Montana
October 26, 2015
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STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 1980
Billings, Montana 59103

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Lewistown Schoo! District No. 1
Fergus County

Lewistown, Montana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Lewistown School District No. 1’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Lewistown School District
No. I’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. Lewistown School District No. 1°s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its fed-
eral programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Lewistown School District No. 1's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accord-
ance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits con-
tained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular 4-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance require-
ments referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes ex-
amining, on a test basis, evidence about Lewistown School District No. 1's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lewistown School District No. 1's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Lewistown School District No. 1's, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2015

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Lewistown School District No. 1, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Lewistown School District No. 1°s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Lewistown
School District No. 1’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect an'd correct, non-
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A matei.‘ial weakness in lnterr?al con-
trol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 'ghat there is a rea-
sonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program Yvﬂl not pe prevent-
ed, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or signifi-
cant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weak-
nesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our test.ing of ir_xtemal cqntrol
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

STROM & ASSOCIATES, PC
Billings, Montana
October 26, 2015
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| * LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor, Strom & Associates, PC, has issued an unmodified opinion on Lewistown School District No. 1's financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015.

2. OQur audit disclosed one significant deficiencies in internal controls and none that are considered to be material weak-
nesses relating to intemal controls over financial reporting and its operation.

3. Our audit disclosed a noncompliance which was not material to the financial statements of Lewistown School District
No. 1.

4. Our audit disclosed no significant deficiencies that are considered to be material weaknesses relating to internal con-
trols over major federal awards programs.

5. The auditor, Strom & Associates, PC, has issued an unmodified opinion on Lewistown School District No. 1's compli-
ance with major federal awards programs as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015.

6.  The audit disclosed no audit findings which are required to be reported under section .510 of OMB Circular A-133.
7. The major program for Lewistown School District No. 1 for the year ended June 30, 2015 was

CFDA Number  Name of Federal Program or Cluster
‘ 84.010 Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies - Part A, Improving Basic Programs

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and type B programs was $300,000. Lewistown School District No.
7 I has Title 1 Grants to Local Education Agencies - Part A, Improving Basic Programs as a Type A program.

9. This School District does qualify as a low risk audit client.

B. Findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with "Governmental Auditing
Standards."

There were no findings or recommendations in the prior audit report. The following are finding and recommendations
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

2015-001 Student activity internal controls:

Criteria: Government auditing standards require internal controls to be in place which allow employees to prevent or detect mis-
statements on a timely basis. Proper documentation of disbursements and receipts is necessary for monitoring internal controls.

Condition: Controls over student activities receipts and disbursements are not operating effectively.

Effect: Lack of invoices on disbursements and lack of documentation what should have been collected on deposits impedes em-
ployee’s ability to prevent or detect failures in internal control on a timely basis.

Context: During testing of student activity disbursements we found the following: :
1) Documentation of ticket sales does not include ending tickets for adequate documentation of how many tickets were sold.
2)  Of 48 receipts reviewed, one was found to be deposited two weeks after collection.
3)  Of 48 receipts reviewed, three were found to not have any documentation to support the amount of money collected.
4) Of 55 disbursements reviewed, two were found to have no invoice supporting the disbursement.

Cause: Documentation was not properly included with some high school student activity receipts and disbursements.

Recommendation: We recommend the following:
- 1) Ticket sales documentation should include both the beginning and ending tickets attached to the cash count sheet.
: 2)  Deposits should be made timely (generally within a week) of collection
3)  All receipts should include documentation showing what should have been collected along with what was collected.
4)  All disbursements should be required to be supported by invoices.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Auditee Response: )
1. Documentation of ticket sales does not include ending tickets for adequate documentation of how many tllcke.ts were
sold (both JHS and FHS Activities). Recommend ticket sales documentation should include both the beginning and
ending tickets attached to the cash count sheet.

DISTRICT RESOLUTION: Both beginning and ending tickets will be documented on gate sales.

2. Of 48 Receipts, one was found to be deposited two weeks after collection (FHS Activities). Recommend deposits be
made timeline (generally within one week) of collection.

DISTRICT RESOLUTION: Deposits will be done in a timely manner, within 1 week of collection. Business Man-
ager will assist the FHS Secretary in getting deposits to the bank if the Secretary is unable to get to the bank.

3. Of 48 receipts reviewed, three were found to not have any documentation to support the amount of money collected
(FHS Activities). Recommend all receipts include documentation showing what should have been collected along
with what was collected.

DISTRICT RESOLUTION: The following documentation practices will be put into place — Tickets will be used for
all raffle sales, copies of fundraising forms will be included with the deposit, sign off sheets will be used for fund-
raisers involving the selling of pre-received products. All receipts will be given to the secretary by the Advisor in 2
Receipt Envelope. If documentation is not adequate, the Advisor will be expected to obtain sufficient documentation
prior to the FHS Secretary receiving the funds for deposit.

4. Of 55 disbursements reviewed, two were found to have no invoice supporting the disbursement (FHS Activities).
Recommend all disbursements be required to be supported by invoices.

DISTRICT RESOLUTION: No payment will be made without an invoice present showing the exact dollar amount
owed.

2015-002 Sick Leave Liability Compliance:

Criteria: 1979 Attorney General Opinion — Volume Number 38 — Opinion Number 20 states
“HELD: 1. Non-teaching employees of school districts and post secondary vocational technical centers are entitled to vaca-
tion and sick leave benefits under Title 2, Chapter 18, Part 6, MCA.
2. Title 2, Chapter 18, Part 6, MCA, establishes maximum and minimum benefits which may not be varied
through collective bargaining or other negotiation.”

MCA 2-18-618. Sick leave. (1) A permanent full-time employee earns sick leave credits from the first day of employment. For
calculating sick leave credits, 2,080 hours (52 weeks x 40 hours) equals...(6) Except as otherwise provided in 2-18-1311, an
employee who terminates employment with the agency is entitled to a lump-sum payment equal to one-fourth of the pay at-
tributed to the accumulated sick leave.

Condition: Starting in fiscal year 2015 non-teaching employees with eight or more years of service are allowed to receive 30%
of the accumulated sick leave balances upon separation from service.

Effect: Non-compliance with MCA 2-18-618
Context: The school district adopted policy for the lump-sum payment upon termination for classified employees that states
“...Upon termination a classified employee that has worked the qualifying period and has less than 8 consecutive years of service

in the District will be paid a lump sum payment equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of accumulated sick leave. A classified em-

ployee with 8 or more consecutive years of service in the District will be paid a lump sum payment equal to thirty percent (30%)
of accumulated sick leave.

Cause: The school district was unaware the provision of MCA 2-18-618 were a maxirium and a minimum.

Recommendation: We recommend the School District comply with Montana Code Annotated.
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LEWISTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
For the year-ended June 30, 2015

Auditee Response:
Criteria: 1979 Attorney General Opinion — Volume Number 38 — Opinion Number 20 states
“HELD: 1. Non-teaching employees of school districts and post secondary vocational technical centers
are entitled to vacation and sick leave benefits under Title 2, Chapter 18, Part 6, MCA.
2. Title 2, Chapter 18, Part 6, MCA, establishes maximum and minimum benefits which may
not be varied through collective bargaining or other negotiation.”

MCA 2-18-618. Sick leave. (1) A permanent fulk-time employee earns sick leave credits from the first day of employ-
ment. For calculating sick leave credits, 2,080 hours (52 weeks x 40 hours) equals...(6) Except as otherwise provided in 2-
18-1311, an employee who terminates employment with the agency is entitled to a lump-sum payment equal to one-fourth
of the pay attributed to the accumulated sick leave.

Condition: Starting in fiscal year 2015 non-teaching employees with eight or more years of service are allowed to receive
30% of the accumulated sick leave balances upon separation from service.

DISTRICT RESOLUTION: Per legal advice to the School District, the pelicy allowing for 30% payout will be changed
starting in FY2017. It is the intent to change the policy to allow those hired prior to June 30, 2016 to continue to receive
the 30% sick leave payout if they have been employed by the District for at least 8 years. Anyone hired after July 1,
2016, no matter the length of employment, will be eligible to receive only the 25% payout per MCA. Because contracts
for FY2016 have already been issued and signed our legal advisors have stated that it would be detrimental to the District
to remove that benefit at this time, as a complaint to Wage and Hour is more likely to occur.

C. Findings and questioned costs for Federal awards, as defined in section .510 (a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The audit disclosed no findings or questioned costs relating to federal awards as defined in section .510 (a) of OMB Circular
A-133 in the prior audit report or for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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